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On June 27, 2019, the Committee on Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, chaired by Council Member Antonio Reynoso, will hold a hearing on Int. No. 1575, a local law requiring the Business Integrity Commission (“BIC”) to impose civil penalties on businesses that BIC licenses or registers when their drivers commit traffic offenses, and Int. No. 1611, a local law expanding BIC’s role in reviewing waste transfer stations, dumps and fill material operations that are required to get a permit from the Department of Sanitation (“DSNY”).   The Committee expects to hear testimony from representatives from DSNY, BIC, private waste carters, commercial waste industry workers, environmental advocates, local businesses and interested members of the public.  
[bookmark: _Toc12480806]Executive Summary
The New York City Council created BIC in 1996[footnoteRef:2] to “eliminate organized crime and other forms of corruption and criminality from the industries it regulates” and ensure that the businesses that “operate in these industries conduct their affairs with honesty and integrity.”[footnoteRef:3]  At the time of BIC’s creation, the private collecting and carting of commercial waste (“the Industry”), as well as the sorting of commercial waste at waste transfer stations prior to its permanent disposal, was heavily controlled by organized crime.[footnoteRef:4]  Anti-competitive practices and, in some instances, violence, left customers paying inflated prices and lacking provider choices.  Since 1996, several factors, including multiple high profile prosecutions and BIC’s oversight, have contributed to significant improvements in the Industry.   [2:  BIC’s predecessor agency, the Trade Waste Commission (“TWC”), was created via the enactment of Local Law 42 of 1996 (“Local Law 42”).  Local Law 42, codified as Title 16-A, Chapter 1 of the New York City Administrative Code, granted the TWC broad authority to monitor, review and license commercial carters in the Industry.  In 2001, a Charter Revision Commission combined the TWC with the Markets Division of the New York City Department of Small Business Services and the New York City Gambling Control Commission and renamed it the Organized Crime Control Commission (the “OCCC”).  In 2002, the OCCC was renamed BIC.]  [3:  BUS. INTEGRITY COMM’N, About the Business Integrity Commission, https://www1.nyc.gov/site/bic/about/about-bic.page.  In addition to trade waste, BIC’s jurisdiction includes the public wholesale food markets and the shipboard gambling industry in New York City.  Moreover, as detailed below, BIC has a limited role in the regulation of transfer stations.  This Report focuses on BIC’s role in regulating commercial carters and transfer stations.]  [4:  Allen R. Myerson, The Garbage Wars: Cracking the Cartel, N.Y. TIMES, July 30, 1995, https://www.nytimes.com/1995/07/30/business/the-garbage-wars-cracking-the-cartel.html.  See also Timothy Egan, Mob Looks at Recycling and Sees Green, N.Y. TIMES, Nov. 28, 1990, https://www.nytimes.com/1990/11/28/nyregion/mob-looks-at-recycling-and-sees-green.html.] 

BIC has broad authority to monitor, review and license commercial carters in the Industry including the power to suspend, revoke, or deny a commercial carter’s license if its principals lack “good character, honesty, and integrity.”[footnoteRef:5]  Carters who fail to meet this standard may be permanently banned—“debarred”—from the Industry.[footnoteRef:6]  BIC applies this same good character standard during its limited review of waste transfer stations. [5:  “Good character, honesty, and integrity” is referred to interchangeably herein as “good character” and “honesty and integrity”.]  [6:  Persons Who Have Agreed Not to Participate in the Waste Collection, Removal or Disposal Industry, BUS. INTEGRITY COMM’N (the “BIC Debarment List”).  The BIC Debarment List states that such debarments are “lifetime unless otherwise noted.”  A debarred individual is prohibited from participating in the Industry or may have specific restrictions placed on their Industry involvement.  For example, a debarred individual may be permitted to transport “non-NYC waste” or may have a cap placed on their percentage ownership interest in a licensed entity.  On file with the Council.] 

In addition to organized crime prevention and suppression, BIC “establish[es] standards for service and for the regulation and conduct” of the Industry[footnoteRef:7] and promulgates Industry rules.[footnoteRef:8]  Due to the nature of the collection and carting of trade waste, some of the rules BIC promulgates relate to protecting the safety and health of New Yorkers.[footnoteRef:9] [7:  N.Y.C. ADMIN. CODE § 16-504. ]  [8:  Title 17 of the Rules of the City of New York (“RCNY”).  ]  [9:  17 RCNY § 5-04; 17 RCNY § 5-08(p). ] 

BIC regulates dynamic industries that are constantly adapting and changing and BIC must do the same.  This report, which is based on the work of the Council’s Oversight and Investigations Unit (“OIU”), highlights three acute examples where BIC must evolve—through legislation and by enforcement of laws and rules—to keep pace with such change (the “Report”).
First, BIC’s background investigations of its prospective and current licensees must include careful review of property records.  BIC monitors the integrity of the Industry in part by reviewing carter license applications and renewals.  Although BIC receives information pertaining to the property on which commercial carters operate, OIU has identified a commercial carter that has engaged in numerous financial transactions with multiple BIC-debarred individuals related to the land on which the carter is operating.  While BIC has expressed a desire to streamline and shorten its application review process, BIC must ensure that diligent review of property ownership information concerning the land on which commercial carters operate is conducted when it performs background investigations.
Second, new legislation that imposes a scheme mandating the issuance of civil penalties to commercial carters is necessary.  Commercial waste vehicles have been involved in a number of crashes resulting in dozens of pedestrian and Industry worker deaths since 2010 alone.[footnoteRef:10]  Unfortunately, BIC has only sporadically exercised its rulemaking and enforcement authority to hold commercial carters accountable for the unsafe driving practices of their employees.  As discussed below, such efforts by BIC, including the discretionary issuance of civil penalties to commercial carters for the unsafe driving practices of their employees, have largely fallen short.  Therefore, Int. No. 1575, which would mandate that BIC impose civil penalties on commercial carters whose employees commit safety violations and would bring much-needed accountability and encourage safe operations. [10:  The exact number of fatal crashes involving commercial waste vehicles differ among sources. The New York City Department of Sanitation’s (“DSNY”) Commercial Waste Zone Plan indicates 26 deaths between 2010 and November 2018.  Commercial Waste Zones, NY.C. DEP’T OF SANITATION 12 (Nov. 7, 2018), https://dsny.cityofnewyork.us/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/CWZ_Plan-1.pdf.  The N.Y. Daily News reports 43 deaths between 2010 and November 2017. Kerry Burke & Thomas Tracy, Garbage Truck Driver Who Killed Two People Lied to Cops – And His Company’s License May Soon Land in the Trash, N.Y. DAILY NEWS, May 5, 2018, https://www.nydailynews.com/new-york/sanitation-killer-truck-driver-license-canned-article-1.3971971.  Meanwhile, the number cited in October 2018 by the NYPD during a joint press conference conducted with BIC was nearly 50 fatalities since 2010, and up to 20 since 2016.   NYC Mayor’s Office, City Announces Crackdown on Dangerous Operations by Private Trash Trucks, YOUTUBE (Oct. 29, 2018), https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Weo1ScYKkQQ&feature=youtu.be.] 

Third, BIC should regularly review transfer station applications and renewals.  The business of commercial carting requires nightly visits to transfer stations to deposit trash.  Transfer stations are not simply on the Industry periphery, they are an essential component of the trade waste life cycle:  from curb, to carter, to transfer station, to ultimate disposal site.   Moreover, ownership interests of commercial carting companies and transfer stations sometimes overlap.  Yet, BIC does not regularly review transfer stations under the current regulatory framework.[footnoteRef:11]  Int. No. 1611, which would mandate the regular review of transfer stations and would ensure that they operate with good character, honesty, and integrity. [11:  N.Y.C. ADMIN. CODE § 16-131.] 
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Methodology

Pursuant to its investigation, OIU sought information and documents on various topic areas, including BIC’s regulatory oversight function over the Industry, its administration and infrastructure, its investigative and enforcement practices, its license review process, its actions related to health and safety concerns, and its process of review and investigation of waste transfer stations.[footnoteRef:12]     [12:  For instance, the Council served two letters on BIC, dated August 24, 2018 and February 19, 2019. Both are on file with the Council.] 

	OIU analyzed all materials BIC produced, spoke with BIC leadership and interviewed over two dozen witnesses including Industry workers, policy experts, advocates, union representatives, lawmakers, and regulatory professionals who specialize in the Industry.  In addition, OIU examined relevant legal authority, publicly available data, and reports prepared by governmental and non-governmental entities.  OIU also reviewed publications from numerous news outlets and hearing testimony before the Council. 
[bookmark: _Toc12480808]BIC’s Mission and Goals

	Organized crime controlled the Industry in New York City until the New York County District Attorney’s Office took aggressive action in 1995, indicting twenty-three commercial sanitation companies, four trade associations, and seventeen associated individuals.[footnoteRef:13]  Then, in 1996, the Council enacted Local Law 42 which granted BIC’s predecessor agency, the Trade Waste Commission (“TWC”) broad authority to monitor, review and license commercial carters in the Industry.[footnoteRef:14]  Local Law 42 also conferred TWC with the power to suspend, revoke, or deny a commercial carter’s license if its principals lack “good character, honesty, and integrity.”[footnoteRef:15]  In 2001, a Charter Revision Commission broadened TWC’s jurisdiction to combat organized crime in the public wholesale food markets and the shipboard gambling industry and renamed it the Organized Crime Control Commission (the “OCCC”).[footnoteRef:16]  In 2002, the OCCC was renamed BIC.[footnoteRef:17]  BIC’s mission is to: [13:  James C. McKinley Jr., Big Private Garbage Haulers, Linked to Mafia, Are Indicted, N.Y. TIMES, June 23, 1995, https://www.nytimes.com/1995/06/23/us/big-private-garbage-haulers-linked-to-mafia-are-indicted.html.]  [14:  LOCAL LAW NO. 42 (1996) OF CITY OF NEW YORK, available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3625385&GUID=86C807C1-0E6D-4917-9875-ED7A0F3A869D&Options=ID|Text|&Search=; See supra, note 1.]  [15:  Id.]  [16:  Making Our City’s Progress Permanent, N.Y.C. CHARTER REVISION COMM’N, 79-85 (Sept. 5. 2001), http://www.nyc.gov/html/records/rwg/charter/pdf/report_090501_full.pdf.  Shipboard gambling refers to cruises that operate from piers located in New York City and engage in gambling activities; no such businesses are currently in operation in New York City.  BUS. INTEGRITY COMM’N, Shipboard Gambling, https://www1.nyc.gov/site/bic/industries/shipboard-gambling.page.  ]  [17:  N.Y.C. LOCAL LAW 21 (2002), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3625391&GUID=0E0D3215-278B-4EA1-839C-9B65456F9DD4&Options=ID|Text|&Search=.] 

Eliminate organized crime and other forms of corruption and criminality from the public wholesale markets, the trade waste and shipboard gambling industries.[footnoteRef:18]   [18:  BUS. INTEGRITY COMM’N, https://www1.nyc.gov/site/bic/index.page.] 


In service of its mission, BIC’s stated goals are to:

[E]nsure that the regulated businesses are able to compete fairly; that the marketplaces remain free from violence, fraud, rackets and threats; that the customers receive fair treatment; and that the businesses which are allowed to operate in these industries conduct their affairs with honesty and integrity.[footnoteRef:19] [19:  Id.] 


[bookmark: _Toc12480809][bookmark: _Toc8658374]Industry Background 
Work in the Industry is competitive and dangerous.  Commercial carters pick up trash that is deposited curbside during the night.  The crew on a commercial garbage truck is typically composed of a driver and one or more helpers who ride next to the driver in the passenger seat or illegally[footnoteRef:20] on a step on the side towards the rear of the truck.  The crew hauls the trash into a hopper, or tank, which stores the garbage in the rear of the truck.  In a city like New York, this is a substantial endeavor.  Commercial carters licensed by BIC collect more than three million tons of waste generated by more than one hundred thousand businesses annually.[footnoteRef:21]  According to a study commissioned by the New York City Department of Sanitation (“DSNY”), out of a total of approximately ninety BIC-licensed commercial carters,[footnoteRef:22] the top twenty largest carters measured by both number of customers and revenue collected serve more than eighty percent of these businesses.[footnoteRef:23]  The top ten largest carters as measured by revenue collected account for nearly seventy percent of all Industry revenues.[footnoteRef:24]  [20:  V.T.L. § 1233(2)-(3).]  [21:  Commercial Waste Zones, N.Y.C. DEP’T OF SANITATION 4 (Nov. 7, 2018), available at https://dsny.cityofnewyork.us/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/CWZ_Plan-1.pdf.]  [22:  Private Carting Study, N.Y.C. DEP’T OF SANITATION & BUS. INTEGRITY COMM’N, at 11 (Aug. 2016), available at https://dsny.cityofnewyork.us/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/Private_Carting_Study-Market_and_Cost_Analysis.pdf; see also Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. on Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, 14 (N.Y.C. Apr. 30, 2019) (statement of BIC Commissioner Genel) available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3898046&GUID=FD777DF0-1719-4B83-BE83-9070A0756064&Options=&Search=.]  [23:  The five largest carters each serve more than 5,000 customers while three-quarters of commercial carters serve less than 1,000 customers.  Private Carting Study, N.Y.C. DEP’T OF SANITATION & BUS. INTEGRITY COMM’N, at 10 (Aug. 2016), available at https://dsny.cityofnewyork.us/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/Private_Carting_Study-Market_and_Cost_Analysis.pdf.]  [24:  Id. at 12. ] 

Commercial carter operations have significant impacts on the City.  A “single city block may experience [commercial] garbage trucks passing through as many as 400 times in a single day . . . [and] a single route may have as many as 1,000 customer stops and well exceed 100 miles in length.  These findings are not isolated to just one neighborhood; they apply to neighborhoods across the city.”[footnoteRef:25]  Commercial garbage trucks travel “79,000 miles in disorganized, overlapping operations” around the City on a daily basis.[footnoteRef:26]  To make matters worse, “[c]arters often cut corners to remain competitive.  Long, meandering routes can take 12 or more hours to finish, leading to driver fatigue and pushing drivers and workers to engage in unsafe practices—running red lights, speeding, and riding the rear step—to finish the route before dawn.  Often, workers lack safety equipment and training, and carters cut back on necessary equipment maintenance.”[footnoteRef:27]  It is no surprise then that safety is a gravely serious matter for commercial garbage truck operators, helpers, and pedestrians in this competitive and congested landscape. [25:  Commercial Waste Zones, N.Y.C. DEPT. OF SANITATION 11 (Nov. 7, 2018), available at https://dsny.cityofnewyork.us/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/CWZ_Plan-1.pdf. ]  [26:  Id. at 28.]  [27:  Id. at 4.] 

[bookmark: _Toc8721969][bookmark: _Toc12480810]How BIC Effectuates its Regulatory Mission and Goals Via the Review of Commercial Carters

[bookmark: _Toc8658375][bookmark: _Toc8721970][bookmark: _Toc12480811]A. Industry Application and Renewal Requirements 

One of BIC’s core mandates is to control who operates in the Industry.  BIC exercises this regulatory authority in substantial part by regular and comprehensive review of license applications and renewals.  At a hearing before the Council, former BIC Commissioner Daniel Brownell (“Commissioner Brownell”)[footnoteRef:28] underscored that BIC’s “first investigative priority must be background investigations on the applicants for licenses and registrations.”[footnoteRef:29]   [28:  Commissioner Brownell was appointed by Mayor de Blasio in 2014 and remained in that role until his departure at the end of March 2019.  NYC BIC Commissioner Brownell Resigns, WASTE 360, March 12, 2019, https://www.waste360.com/public-agencies/nyc-bic-commissioner-brownell-resigns.  On April 29, 2019, Mayor de Blasio appointed Noah D. Genel as the new BIC commissioner (“Commissioner Genel”).  https://www1.nyc.gov/site/bic/about/the-commissioner.page.  Commissioner Genel initially joined BIC in 2015 as General Counsel and became the Deputy Commissioner of Legal Affairs and General Counsel in 2016.  Id.]  [29:  Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. On Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, 20 (N.Y.C. Nov. 27, 2017) (statement of BIC Commissioner Brownell), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3200581&GUID=0056A631-F4EB-46F6-9108-F772408362A2&Options=&Search=.] 

The application materials that commercial carters are required to provide to BIC are extensive.[footnoteRef:30]  BIC’s review of initial and renewal applications informs its determination of “good character, honesty, and integrity” as outlined in Section 16-509 of the Administrative Code (“Section 16-509”).  Section 16-509 empowers BIC to deny a license if a commercial carter, its principals, or certain employees (the “Applicant”) lacks “good character, honesty, and integrity”[footnoteRef:31] and lays out a non-exhaustive list of factors BIC may consider in making a good character, honesty and integrity determination.  Those factors include truthfulness, criminal conviction or indictment, and association with known organized crime individuals.[footnoteRef:32]   [30:  N.Y.C. ADMIN CODE § 16-508; see also BUS. INTEGRITY COMM’N, Application for Trade Waste Removal License, https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/bic/downloads/pdf/applications/tw-license-appl.pdf.  ]  [31:   N.Y. C. ADMIN. CODE § 16-509(a)(i)-(x).]  [32:  Id.] 

[bookmark: _Toc8658376][bookmark: _Toc8721971]In order to continue to operate in the Industry once granted a license, a commercial carter is obligated to submit a renewal application biennially for BIC’s review.[footnoteRef:33]  A renewal application requires similar disclosures as those set forth in the initial application.[footnoteRef:34]  Initial applications and renewals provide BIC with a rich set of data to review, analyze, and investigate when making a license determination.  This data includes information concerning an applicant’s financial and business history, assets, as well as real property and fleet vehicle ownership.[footnoteRef:35]
 [33:  BUS. INTEGRITY COMM’N, Renewal Application for Trade Waste Removal License, https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/bic/downloads/pdf/applications/tw_lic_renewal.pdf.]  [34:  Id.]  [35:  The license application also requires an applicant to provide information concerning their:  (i) Employees, including their personally identifiable information, hours worked per week, and date of hire; (ii) Principals and shareholders, including any criminal history and administrative violations that resulted in a fine of $5,000 or more, license suspensions, revocations, denials, or any injunctions for six-months or longer; 
(iii) Business interests held in the preceding ten years, regardless of industry and location, any disbarment, denial, or suspension of a government agency license, permit, or business registration, and all civil judgements, either pending or adjudicated, against the applicant or its principals; (iv) Industry associations, including connections to ancillary businesses such as long-haul trash removal, transfer station ownership, or other types of disposal services; and (v) Prospective vehicle operator driver’s license numbers, class and expiration dates. ] 

[bookmark: _Toc12480812]B. Evaluation of Applications and Renewals[footnoteRef:36]  [36:  Information contained in this section is based on OIU’s investigation, witness interviews and publicly available data. ] 


Several distinct units within BIC directly support the application process.[footnoteRef:37] Following its initial intake and processing, an application submitted by a commercial carter is assigned to the Background Investigations Unit (the “BIU”), which conducts a background investigation of the Applicant.[footnoteRef:38]   [37:  As of March 8, 2019, BIC operated with a total staff of seventy-nine, including eleven investigators, eleven attorneys, seven auditors and eight intelligence analysts.  Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. on Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, 68 (N.Y.C. Mar. 8, 2019, available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/MeetingDetail.aspx?ID=678767&GUID=50396933-7F23-42CE-9C6E-CEBF6A4DB7AA&Options=info&Search) (statement of BIC Commissioner Dan Brownell), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3855410&GUID=98C30C9D-D8FD-4D25-88D3-CC3164FCAA4B&Options=&Search=.]  [38:  Such investigation may involve an evaluation of an Applicant’s organized crime connections, any association with individuals BIC has debarred from participating in the Industry, criminal history, failure to disclose information such as all principals and employees, failure to notify BIC of material changes to a submitted application, and evidence of fraudulent activity or lack of good character, honesty and integrity.  N.Y.C. ADMIN. CODE § 16-509(a)(i)-(x).  ] 

The BIU may refer a matter to BIC’s Investigations Unit (the “Investigations Unit”), comprised of investigators, some of whom are former New York City Police Department (the “NYPD”) law enforcement personnel, and other professionals.[footnoteRef:39]  The Investigations Unit’s primary function is to conduct investigations independent of the application review process, although they may assist the BIU in certain circumstances.[footnoteRef:40] [39:  Detectives from the NYPD’s Criminal Enterprise Investigations Section at times conduct joint investigations with BIC staff.  Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. on Sanitation and Solid Waste Management 68 (N.Y.C. Mar. 8, 2019) (statement of BIC Commissioner Brownell), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3855410&GUID=98C30C9D-D8FD-4D25-88D3-CC3164FCAA4B&Options=&Search=.]  [40:  The Investigations Unit may also issue summonses to commercial carters who violate the provisions set forth in the Administrative Code or the RCNY, enforce BIC’s recycling rules and respond to safety, labor and wage theft complaints.  ] 

The Audit Unit is tasked with the review and analysis of various forms of financial information and other documentation commercial carters are required to provide to BIC.[footnoteRef:41]  The Audit Unit may initiate an investigation and/or assist other units in the analysis of financial information in an existing investigation or during the review of an application or renewal. [41:  17 RCNY § 5-03.  For example, commercial carters must provide documents related to their business, purchase and sales agreements for Industry businesses purchased and/or sold in the last ten years, and documents related to any contested tax proceeding.  BUS. INTEGRITY COMM’N, Application for Trade Waste Removal License, https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/bic/downloads/pdf/applications/tw-license-appl.pdf.  Commercial carters must also maintain and furnish upon BIC’s request a litany of items including records pertaining to cash receipts, petty cash disbursements, disposal expenses, as well as balance sheets and income statements.  17 RCNY § 5-03.] 

The Legal Unit has a number of responsibilities, such as examining the findings of the other BIC units involved in the licensing process, applying the good character, honesty, and integrity standard, and recommending whether to approve, suspend, revoke or deny a license or renewal.  BIC’s senior executive staff typically make the final licensing determination.[footnoteRef:42]      [42:  N.Y.C. ADMIN. CODE § 16-504(a).  ] 

The work of each individual unit during the license review process should afford BIC an extensive view of Industry participants over time.    
[bookmark: _Toc8721972][bookmark: _Toc12480813]C. BIC’s Review of Commercial Carter Land Ownership 

On March 27, 2017, former Commissioner Brownell testified before the Council that BIC was “working on streamlining and shortening all [of] our applications” and that BIC had “significantly trimmed the questions and documents we require, which will make the process more customer friendly without sacrificing thoroughness.”[footnoteRef:43]  According to witness interviews, part of this streamlining process included an abridged emphasis on the review of property records.  Indeed, one witness indicated that BIC stopped conducting in-depth reviews of property records altogether by omitting to fully investigate not only the locations where carting companies operate but also the financial relationships between licensees and landowners.   [43:  Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. on Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, 101-02 (N.Y.C. Mar. 27, 2017) (statement of BIC Commissioner Brownell), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=2955292&GUID=E4DF180D-2485-4F9D-88F9-B282054CE8B6&Options=&Search=.] 

It is critical however that BIC conduct thorough reviews and assessments of commercial carters, particularly with respect to financial relationships between licensees and individuals BIC has deemed unfit to operate in the Industry.  One recently reported example of such a financial relationship involved a BIC-licensed commercial carter, Century Waste Services, operating on land owned by a BIC-debarred individual.[footnoteRef:44] [44:  Kiera Feldman, A Fatal Accident Leads to Broader Questions About NYC Trash Hauler’s Operations, PROPUBLICA, Aug. 13, 2018, https://www.propublica.org/article/a-fatal-accident-leads-to-broader-questions-about-nyc-trash-haulers-operations (former head of the Solid Waste Commission in Westchester County, Bruce Berger said he was surprised to learn that a debarred individual owned the land beneath a trash company licensed in New York City.  He further commented that BIC has great power and has often used it to eliminate business ties between licensed companies and individuals on BIC’s Debarment List).] 

OIU’s review of public records, including mortgage and lease assignment information,[footnoteRef:45] revealed an additional instance in which a commercial carter had engaged in numerous financial transactions with multiple BIC-debarred individuals related to the land on which this carter operates. [45:  Among other public sources, OIU reviewed LexisNexis (“Lexis”), Westlaw, CLEAR Investigation Software, the Automated City Register Information System, the New York State Unified Court System eCourts, Webcrims, New York State Department of State records, New York City Department of Finance records, and various court filings.  These sources provided information, including but not limited to, company ownership and directorships, familial relationships, debt filings, criminal history, asset, property, and vehicle ownership and litigation history.] 

This BIC-licensed carting company is, or recently has been, operating on three parcels of land (individually referred to as “Parcel 1”, “Parcel 2, and “Parcel 3” and collectively, the “Parcels”) in Queens[footnoteRef:46] and the Bronx[footnoteRef:47] (the “Queens and Bronx Carter”).  The Queens and Bronx Carter is owned by a corporation (the “Corporation”) that in turn is wholly owned by a debarred individual, who pursuant to an agreement with BIC, currently retains a minority ownership interest in the Queens and Bronx Carter and serves as its CFO.  As demonstrated below, the Corporation has engaged in numerous financial transactions with multiple other individuals BIC has debarred from the Industry.   [46:  OIU observed a sign with this BIC-licensed carter’s name on the front of the building at this location within the previous month.]  [47:  OIU observed several commercial garbage trucks with this BIC-licensed carter’s name on their side parked at this location within the previous month.  ] 

An individual debarred by BIC in 1999 (the “BIC-debarred Individual”) owned Parcel 1 from 1969 to 2007.  In 2007, the BIC-debarred Individual sold Parcel 1 to the Corporation and simultaneously issued the Corporation a mortgage.  Approximately two weeks later, half of the interest in this mortgage was assigned to a pair of individuals who BIC debarred in 1999 (the “Two Additional Debarred Individuals”).  Per the mortgage agreement, the Corporation was scheduled to remit monthly mortgage payments to the Two Additional Debarred Individuals through April 2019.
The BIC-debarred individual similarly owned Parcel 2 from 1972 to 2007.  In 2007, the BIC-debarred Individual sold Parcel 2 to the Corporation and simultaneously issued the Corporation a mortgage.  Approximately two weeks later, half of the interest in this mortgage was assigned to the Two Additional Debarred Individuals.  Per the mortgage agreement, the Corporation was scheduled to remit monthly mortgage payments to the Two Additional Debarred Individuals through April 2019.
Another individual debarred by BIC (the “Fourth Debarred Individual”) owned Parcel 3 from 1989 to 2007.  In 2007, the Fourth Debarred Individual sold Parcel 3 to the Corporation and simultaneously issued the Corporation a mortgage.  Per the mortgage agreement, the Corporation was scheduled to remit monthly mortgage payments to the Fourth Debarred Individual through April 2019, but instead sold Parcel 3 in 2018 and satisfied the mortgage upon the sale.
OIU requested that BIC confirm whether it reviewed mortgage transactions related to the Corporation since 2007.  BIC failed to confirm whether they conducted any such review.[footnoteRef:48]  Consequently, it remains unclear whether BIC was aware of the Corporation’s mortgage payments to the debarred individuals described above.  Nonetheless, it is clear that debarred individuals maintain financial relationships with Industry participants. [48:  OIU’s written questions to BIC and BIC’s written answers in response are on file with the Council.  OIU requested similar confirmation of whether BIC reviewed land ownership and/or mortgage transactions concerning three additional commercial carters, which BIC provided.] 

[bookmark: _Toc8658377][bookmark: _Toc8721973][bookmark: _Toc12480814]RECOMMENDATION ONE: CAREFUL REVIEW OF PROPERTY RECORDS IS NECESSARY TO ENSURE COMMERCIAL CARTERS ARE NOT OPERATING ON LAND OWNED BY DEBARRED INDIVIDUALS, OR OTHERWISE DOING BUSINESS WITH DEBARRED INDIVIDUALS              

[bookmark: _Toc8658384][bookmark: _Toc8721980]It is imperative that BIC strictly scrutinize property records and any related financial transactions during its application review process to ensure that debarred individuals do not profit from the Industry in contravention of their agreements with BIC.  To the extent BIC has instituted any of the streamlining measures described above, or is considering doing so, it must balance the desire to ease regulatory burdens on the Industry with its mission-derived mandate of thorough application review.    


[bookmark: _Toc12480815]Commercial Carters Must Be Incentivized to Prioritize Safety Over Profit

[bookmark: _Toc8658385][bookmark: _Toc8721981][bookmark: _Toc12480816]A. Issues with Safety in the Industry

	In recent years, press reports have highlighted instances of unsafe Industry practices.[footnoteRef:49]  In 2018, a series of articles chronicled several fatal crashes involving commercial waste carters,[footnoteRef:50] including an Industry worker and an elderly disabled pedestrian crushed to death under the wheels of commercial carting trucks,[footnoteRef:51] and other crashes that resulted in serious injury and property damage.[footnoteRef:52]  In addition, these articles also exposed other serious safety concerns: exhausted drivers and helpers forced to work long hours, the hiring of untrained helpers paid in cash, and trucks failing routine equipment safety inspections.[footnoteRef:53]  [49:  Joe Stepansky, Eight Injured As Garbage Truck Crashes Through Brooklyn Deli Wall, N.Y. DAILY NEWS, June 21, 2014, https://www.nydailynews.com/new-york/brooklyn/injured-garbage-truck-crashes-brooklyn-deli-article-1.1837266; Frank Donnelly, $300,000 Settlement In Car-Private Sanitation Truck Crash, SILIVE, Feb. 14, 2016, https://www.silive.com/southshore/2016/02/300000_settlement_in_car-priva.html; Erin Durkin, Private Sanitation Companies In NYC Are Rife With Dangerous And Illegal Conditions, Advocates Charge, N.Y. DAILY NEWS, May 4, 2016, https://www.nydailynews.com/new-york/nyc-private-sanitation-companies-rife-dangerous-conditions-article-1.2624056; Dirty and Dangerous, NYCOSH, May 2016, available at http://nycosh.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/05/DirtyDangerous_FullReport_Final.pdf; Reckless Endangerment, TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES & TRANSFORM DON’T TRASH NYC, June 2016, available at http://transformdonttrashnyc.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/06/Reckless-Endangerment.pdf.]  [50:  Kiera Feldman, Trashed: Inside the Deadly World of Commercial Garbage Collection, PROPUBLICA, Jan. 4, 2018, https://www.propublica.org/article/trashed-inside-the-deadly-world-of-commercial-garbage-collection/; Kiera Feldman, Hell On Wheels, PROPUBLICA, June 4, 2018, https://features.propublica.org/sanitation-salvage/sanitation-salvage-accidents-new-york-city-commercial-carting-garbage/; Carrie Jaeger, Overhauling New York City’s Commercial Waste Industry, NYLCV, July 13, 2018, https://nylcv.org/news/overhauling-new-york-citys-commercial-waste-industry/; Fritz Schneider & Jose Maldonado, Debate About NYC’s Commercial Waste Needs to Focus on Sound Data, CITYLIMITS.ORG, Apr. 3, 2018, https://citylimits.org/2018/04/03/cityviews-debate-about-nycs-commercial-waste-needs-to-focus-on-sound-data/; Kendall Christiansen, The Right Way to Boost Garbage-Truck Safety, N.Y. POST, Nov. 2, 2018, https://nypost.com/2018/11/02/the-right-way-to-boost-garbage-truck-safety/.  These articles also highlighted other concerns permeating the industry, such as those related to wage theft, sham unions created by management for the benefit of management rather than workers and off-book employment have recently been the subject of a significant amount of reporting. ]  [51:  Bazona Barnabe Bado, The Death of Mouctar Diallo: African Communities Want Justice, THE AFRICAN JOURNAL, June 17, 2018, https://theafricanjournalonline.com/the-death-of-mouctar-diallo-african-communities-want-justice/. ]  [52:  Sean Campbell, How To Fix New York City’s Dangerous Private Sanitation Industry, CITY & STATE, Mar. 14, 2018, https://cityandstateny.com/articles/opinion/opinion/how-fix-new-york-citys-dangerous-private-sanitation-industry.html.]  [53:  Kiera Feldman, Trashed: Inside the Deadly World of Commercial Garbage Collection, PROPUBLICA, Jan. 4, 2018,  https://www.propublica.org/article/trashed-inside-the-deadly-world-of-commercial-garbage-collection/; Kiera Feldman, Hell On Wheels, PROPUBLICA, June 4, 2018, https://features.propublica.org/sanitation-salvage/sanitation-salvage-accidents-new-york-city-commercial-carting-garbage/. ] 

 In an effort to gain Industry employee perspective on these issues, OIU interviewed several witnesses with experience working for both large and small carters.   Regardless of the size of their employer, these witnesses confirmed details of poor and unsafe working conditions.  They described first-hand participation and/or observation of helpers hanging off the backs of trucks, drivers operating vehicles with faulty brakes, drivers ignoring red lights and driving the wrong way down one-way streets.   They also spoke of the pervasive practice in the Industry of drivers hiring untrained helpers and paying them in cash.   A common thread emerged from these interviews: virtually every witness and their coworkers tolerated these conditions because they felt they lacked employment options due to their limited education, and in some cases, criminal records.
Such dangerous practices have significant impact on Industry drivers, helpers, and pedestrians.  According to DSNY and BIC, as of September 2018, commercial sanitation trucks have been responsible for twenty-six fatalities since 2010, and twelve having occurred since 2015.[footnoteRef:54]  Fatalities do not tell the full story, however.  As depicted in Table 1 below, the number of crashes and attendant injuries attributed to just eight commercial carters from 2016 through 2018 also evidence dangerous patterns of unsafe driving in the Industry.   [54:  Commercial Waste Zones, N.Y.C. DEP’T OF SANITATION 11 (Nov. 7, 2018), available at https://dsny.cityofnewyork.us/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/CWZ_Plan-1.pdf.  The numbers cited in October 2018 by NYPD Chief of the Department Terence Monahan (“Chief Monahan”) during a joint press conference conducted with Commissioner Brownell were nearly 50 fatalities since 2010, and up to 20 since 2016.  NYC Mayor’s Office, City Announces Crackdown on Dangerous Operations by Private Trash Trucks, YOUTUBE (Oct. 29, 2018), https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Weo1ScYKkQQ&feature=youtu.be.  It is unclear whether Chief Monahan included fatal crashes not just by Industry vehicles but also those collecting construction, demolition and/or long haul trucks leaving from transfer stations.] 

[image: C:\Users\jesmith\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\SKW1LOB5\table_v2.PNG]
Table 1: Sample 2016-2018 Commercial Carter Crash and Injury Data[footnoteRef:55] [55:  OIU created Table 1 based on data provided by BIC, which is on file with the Council.  The numbers for 2018 relate to a partial year up to August 13, 2018.  ] 


[bookmark: _Toc8658386][bookmark: _Toc8721982][bookmark: _Toc12480817]B. BIC’s Efforts to Respond to Issues with Safety in the Industry

[bookmark: _Toc8658387][bookmark: _Toc8721983]As safety concerns mounted and emerged as a significant problem facing the Industry, BIC began to respond.  However, as discussed below, it remains unclear whether BIC’s response has adequately addressed safety concerns within the Industry.  At the same time, BIC underutilized certain of its enforcement tools, such as its power to issue civil penalties to commercial carters for the unsafe driving practices of their workers.  The following are some of the safety initiatives that BIC utilized to address the growing concerns within the Industry.
Trade Waste Advisory Board
In 2015, BIC reestablished the Trade Waste Advisory Board (the “Board”), a body comprised of the leaders of several trade waste carting companies and trade waste organizations.  The stated purpose of the Board is to foster discussion of matters related to the Industry, including BIC regulation and safety issues.[footnoteRef:56]    [56:  Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. On Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, 49, 87 (N.Y.C. Nov. 27, 2017) (statements of then-BIC Deputy Commissioner Genel), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3200581&GUID=0056A631-F4EB-46F6-9108-F772408362A2&Options=&Search=.] 

The Board organizes semiannual safety symposia that are intended to bring the Industry together in the interest of bettering safety practices.[footnoteRef:57]  These symposia are designed However, few drivers and helpers attend and it is unclear whether the information discussed at these symposia is disseminated to Industry workers.  To address this concern, former Commissioner Brownell informed the Council in November 2017 that BIC was “planning a separate event geared specifically to drivers and helpers at a time and location most convenient for their difficult schedules.”[footnoteRef:58] However, OIU attended the symposium BIC hosted in October 2018, and only observed a handful or so of workers. [57:  Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. On Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, 13 (N.Y.C. Nov. 27, 2017) (statements of Commissioner Brownell), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3200581&GUID=0056A631-F4EB-46F6-9108-F772408362A2&Options=&Search=.]  [58:  Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. On Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, 14-15 (N.Y.C. Nov. 27, 2017) (statement of BIC Commissioner Brownell), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3200581&GUID=0056A631-F4EB-46F6-9108-F772408362A2&Options=&Search=.  ] 

[bookmark: _Toc8658389][bookmark: _Toc8721985]Vision Zero and the Commercial Waste Zone Collection Safety Working Group
In 2016, BIC joined the Vision Zero Task Force, a multi-agency initiative including the NYPD, the New York City Department of Transportation (“DOT”), the Taxi and Limousine Commission (“TLC”), the Metropolitan Transit Authority, and various District Attorney’s offices, among others.[footnoteRef:59]  Launched in 2014, the goal of the Vision Zero initiative is to eliminate traffic fatalities and injuries in New York City.[footnoteRef:60]  That same year, BIC and DSNY formed the Commercial Waste Zone Collection Safety Working Group (the “Safety Working Group”), which also included the DOT, Industry representatives, union leaders and advocates.[footnoteRef:61]  The initial focus of the Safety Working Group was the creation of a Trade Waste Safety Manual (the “Safety Manual”), which was released in 2018 and although advisory in nature, was designed to be a template for carters to use in developing their own safety program.[footnoteRef:62]  [59:  NYC MAYOR’S OFFICE OF OPERATIONS, Vision Zero, https://www1.nyc.gov/site/operations/projects/vision-zero.page.]  [60:  Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. On Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, 20 (N.Y.C. Nov. 27, 2017) (statement of BIC Commissioner Brownell), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3200581&GUID=0056A631-F4EB-46F6-9108-F772408362A2&Options=&Search=.]  [61:  Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. On Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, 9-10 (N.Y.C. Nov. 27, 2017) (statement of BIC Commissioner Brownell), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3200581&GUID=0056A631-F4EB-46F6-9108-F772408362A2&Options=&Search=.]  [62:  Trade Waste Safety Manual, BUS. INTEGRITY COMM’N (Feb. 22, 2018), available at https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/bic/downloads/pdf/safety/bic_safety_manual_022018_final.pdf.] 

Testifying before the Council in March 2018 in his former capacity as BIC’s General Counsel, Commissioner Genel stated that BIC was working to promulgate a rule requiring each trade waste company to adopt the Safety Manual and formulate its own written safety policies, but that with respect to its ability to actually review a carter’s safety regulations, “again, we’re a small agency.  We can’t go through it word by word, but we can certainly review it to see whether or not it appears to be a comprehensive effort by the company to come up with written protocols.”[footnoteRef:63]  BIC has not yet promulgated such a rule as of the time of the publication of this Report. [63:  Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. On Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, 105-106 (N.Y.C. Mar. 14, 2018) (statement of then-BIC Deputy Commissioner Genel), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3345083&GUID=1452AEED-3269-435B-B65E-A70FDF3865AC&Options=&Search=.] 

[bookmark: _Toc8658390][bookmark: _Toc8721986]Interagency Collision Review Panel
In 2018, BIC formed the Interagency Collision Review Panel (the “Panel”) consisting of the NYPD, DOT, New York City Department of Citywide Administrative Services, TLC, DSNY and BIC designed to examine crashes causing serious injury or death involving a BIC licensed or registered company.[footnoteRef:64]  As of March 2019, the Panel has met on three occasions and has reviewed four crashes.    [64:  According to emails provided by BIC, the panel was created in April 2018. ] 

[bookmark: _Toc8658391][bookmark: _Toc8721987]Sanitation Salvage
In addition to the above initiatives, BIC took significant disciplinary action against one commercial carter, Sanitation Salvage Corp. (“Sanitation Salvage”).  However, BIC was criticized extensively for the length of time it took to do so.  On November 7, 2017, a Sanitation Salvage driver fatally struck a helper, and then a few months later, on April 27, 2018, the same driver killed a seventy-two year old man while he was crossing the street.[footnoteRef:65]  BIC took no disciplinary action against Sanitation Salvage until months after the second death.     [65:  Kiera Feldman, Sanitation Salvage, Troubled Garbage Hauler, Surrenders Operating License, PROPUBLICA, Nov. 27, 2018, https://www.propublica.org/article/sanitation-salvage-troubled-garbage-hauler-surrenders-operating-license.] 

According to BIC, the agency required additional authority to regulate health and safety in the Industry and was limited by its “nebulous powers to establish standards for compliance with health and safety measures in the trade waste industry.”[footnoteRef:66]  Nevertheless, on August 24, 2018, BIC ultimately issued its determination to suspend Sanitation Salvage from operating in the Industry (the “Suspension Determination”).[footnoteRef:67]  The Suspension Determination itemized Sanitation Salvage’s safety record, including fifty-eight collisions in the three preceding years:  “Two of these collisions have resulted in fatalities.  Eleven of these collisions have resulted in personal injury.  Two of these collisions have resulted in property damage and injury, and six of these collisions have resulted in property damage.”[footnoteRef:68]   [66:  Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. On Sanitation and Solid Waste Management 16 (N.Y.C. Nov. 27, 2017) (statement of BIC Commissioner Brownell), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3200581&GUID=0056A631-F4EB-46F6-9108-F772408362A2&Options=&Search=.]  [67:  Matthew Flamm, Bronx Carting Company Has License Suspended After Two Deaths, CRAIN’S, Aug. 24, 2018, https://www.crainsnewyork.com/article/20180824/PROFESSIONAL_SERVICES/180829922/bronx-carting-company-sanitation-salvage-has-license-suspended-after-two-deaths.]  [68:  Final Determination of the Business Integrity Commission to Suspend Sanitation Salvage Corp.’s License to Operate as a Trade Waste Business, BUS. INTEGRITY COMM’N 1 (Aug. 31, 2019).] 

The Suspension Determination provided specific details related to some of those fifty-eight collisions, illustrating the carter’s disregard for safety.  Other examples highlighted in the Suspension Determination include incidents of Sanitation Salvage trucks running red lights and speeding in school zones, and various violations issued to Sanitation Salvage by the New York State Department of Transportation.[footnoteRef:69]  The Suspension Determination concluded that “[b]ased on a pattern of unsafe operation of its business, the Commission finds that the continued operation of Sanitation Salvage’s business creates an imminent danger to life or property” (in addition to providing false or fraudulent information) and barred the company from operating in the Industry until it was able to demonstrate that “it no longer poses an imminent danger to life or property.”[footnoteRef:70] [69:  Id. at 5.]  [70:  Id. at 9.] 

Of note, the Sanitation Salvage suspension is not the first time BIC has issued an emergency suspension based on a finding of imminent danger to life or property.  In 2003, an administrative law judge upheld BIC’s issuance of a final determination of emergency suspension to another commercial carter due to five incidents within a nine-month period in which the carter’s vehicles were being operated by drivers without a license, lack of vehicle registration and insurance, tires with limited tread, and failing brake lights.[footnoteRef:71] [71:  On file with the Council.] 

Going forward, BIC should take swift and aggressive action against Industry participants with poor safety records.

[bookmark: _Toc8658393][bookmark: _Toc8721989][bookmark: _Toc12480818]C. Unsafe Driving Practices are Prevalent in the Industry 

During a single day in September 2018, the NYPD conducted spot inspections of commercial sanitation trucks in Manhattan’s 19th Precinct and Brooklyn’s 62nd Precinct, issuing forty-seven and fifty-seven summonses respectively.[footnoteRef:72]  These summonses related to violations for safety concerns including faulty brakes, leaking fuel lines, running red lights and driving in the wrong direction.[footnoteRef:73]  All industry trucks stopped by the NYPD received violations.[footnoteRef:74]  [72:  NYPD Cracking Down on Private Garbage Truck After Spate of Fatal Crashes, ABC 7, Oct. 29, 2018, https://abc7ny.com/traffic/nypd-crackdown-on-garbage-truck-after-spate-of-fatal-crashes/4576708/.]  [73:  Shari Logan, Inspections Show Private Garbage Trucks Are Full Of Dangerous Infractions, N.Y. POST, Oct. 29, 2018, https://nypost.com/2018/10/29/inspections-show-private-garbage-trucks-are-full-of-dangerous-infractions/.]  [74:  NYPD and BIC Announce Crackdown on Dangerous Operations by Private Carting Trucks, NYPD, Oct. 29, 2018, available at https://www1.nyc.gov/site/nypd/news/pr1029/nypd-bic-crackdown-dangerous-operations-private-carting-trucks.] 

The following month, recognizing the need for effective safety enforcement of the Industry, Chief Monahan of the NYPD announced a joint enforcement initiative by the NYPD and BIC (the “Safety Initiative”):  The “NYPD [is] . . . taking aim at the commercial carting industry, an industry that has been operating recklessly in New York City and whose constant disregard for the law has proven fatal.”[footnoteRef:75]  Chief Monahan cautioned:   [75:  NYC Mayor’s Office, City Announces Crackdown on Dangerous Operations by Private Trash Trucks, YOUTUBE (Oct. 29, 2018), https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Weo1ScYKkQQ&feature=youtu.be.] 

These collisions often involve trucks not yielding to pedestrians and bicyclists, traveling at excessive speeds, sometimes in the wrong direction and running red lights.  When you factor in faulty equipment, such as worn out breaks, these 25-ton trucks become death traps . . . . The message is drive safely out there.  Lives are at stake.[footnoteRef:76] [76:  Id.] 


The Safety Initiative, which took place from October 28, 2018 through November 4, 2018, involved the deployment of at least one vehicle in every precinct in the City and personnel, including from several specialized NYPD units such as Highway Patrol, the Motor Carrier Safety Unit, and the Strategic Response Group.[footnoteRef:77]  This effort resulted in the NYPD issuing five hundred fifteen moving violations and five hundred fifty-five criminal court tickets for infractions ranging from low tire pressure to defective steering and brakes.[footnoteRef:78] Even more telling, of the one hundred forty-two commercial garbage trucks inspected, one hundred thirty-two were taken out of service[footnoteRef:79] and seventeen were towed.[footnoteRef:80]  By comparison, BIC issued “more than 80 BIC administrative violations” during the Safety Initiative.[footnoteRef:81]  In fact, from 2012 through 2016, BIC issued just one violation Industry-wide for a vehicle failing to operate in compliance with all traffic laws, rules and regulations from, two such violations in 2015, one in 2017 and one in 2018.[footnoteRef:82]      [77:  NYPD and BIC Announce Crackdown on Dangerous Operations by Private Carting Trucks, NYPD, Oct. 29, 2018, available at https://www1.nyc.gov/site/nypd/news/pr1029/nypd-bic-crackdown-dangerous-operations-private-carting-trucks.]  [78:  Cedar Attanasio, Dozens of Dangerous Private Garbage Trucks Pulled From NYC Streets, N.Y. POST, Nov. 7, 2018,  .]  [79:  Id.]  [80:  Myles Miller, Investigation: Inside the NYPD Private Carting Shutdown, NY1, Nov. 5, 2018, https://www.ny1.com/nyc/all-boroughs/news/2018/11/06/investigation--inside-the-nypd-commercial-carting-crackdown.]  [81:  Hearing Before the N.Y.C. Council Comm. On Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, 72 (N.Y.C. Mar. 8, 2019) (statement of BIC Commissioner Brownell), available at https://legistar.council.nyc.gov/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3855410&GUID=98C30C9D-D8FD-4D25-88D3-CC3164FCAA4B&Options=&Search=.  ]  [82:  Id. ] 

[bookmark: _Toc12480819][bookmark: _Toc8658392][bookmark: _Toc8721988]D. BIC’s Failure to Administer Civil Penalties to Commercial Carters for the Unsafe   Driving Practices of Its Employees

BIC is empowered by Administrative Code § 16-504(i) to promulgate rules it deems necessary and appropriate related to its regulation of the Industry.[footnoteRef:83]  Indeed, BIC already has rules authorizing the issuance of civil penalties to carting companies for failure to comply with certain laws relating to safety.[footnoteRef:84]  17 RCNY § 5-04 mandates that carting companies comply with all Federal, State and local laws, rules, and regulations with jurisdiction “over their licensees’ activities concerning vehicle specifications, sanitary requirements, handling, transport, receipt, transfer, or disposal of trade waste.”[footnoteRef:85]  Further, 17 RCNY § 5-08(p) requires vehicles used to transport waste to operate in compliance with all traffic laws, rules and regulations.[footnoteRef:86]   [83:  N.Y.C. ADMIN. CODE § 16-504.]  [84:  17 RCNY § 1-04(a).]  [85:  17 RCNY § 5-04.]  [86:  17 RCNY § 5-08(p).] 

Pursuant to 17 RCNY § 1-04, if BIC determines that a commercial carter fails to comply with BIC rules, it may issue civil penalties not to exceed $10,000 for each such rule violation.[footnoteRef:87]  These civil penalties are issued to commercial carters and not to individual employees.[footnoteRef:88] However, BIC has rarely exercised this power.  Based on a review of information available on Open Data[footnoteRef:89] and documents provided by BIC, since 2012, BIC has issued ten violations pursuant to 17 RCNY § 5-04 and four violations pursuant to 17 RCNY § 5-08(p).   [87:  17 RCNY § 1-04(a).]  [88:  N.Y.C. ADMIN. CODE § 16-516; 17 RCNY § 1-05.]  [89:  BIC Issued Violations, NYC OPEN DATA, available at https://data.cityofnewyork.us/Business/BIC-Issued-Violations/upii-frjc.] 

Moreover, OIU identified only a handful of instances where BIC issued civil penalties to commercial carters for the unsafe driving practices of its employees under these provisions.[footnoteRef:90]  One of these instances occurred in 2014.[footnoteRef:91]  In 2015, a BIC-licensed commercial carting company was observed operating a truck with an expired New York State Department of Motor Vehicle inspection, expired motor vehicle inspection, and expired heavy vehicle inspection.[footnoteRef:92]  BIC issued three separate violations to the commercial carter under 17 RCNY § 5-04 and sought a total penalty of $30,000.[footnoteRef:93]  BIC settled this matter and the commercial carter paid $450.[footnoteRef:94] [90:  In September 2018, a BIC investigator observed a dump truck spilling dirt from its rear door and operating on tires which were in disrepair.  BIC issued a violation to the commercial carting company pursuant to 17 RCNY § 5-04 and sought a penalty of $10,000.  BIC settled this matter and the commercial carter paid $500.  On file with the Council. On file with the Council.]  [91:  In December 2014, BIC received a complaint in which the caller stated that a commercial carting truck drove through a red light nearly hitting complainantthem.  BIC reviewed a video recording of the incident and ultimately issued a violation to the company for failing to comply with 17 RCNY § 5-04. The case was ultimately dismissed after the assigned investigator retired. BIC ultimately dismissed this matter. On file with the Council.]  [92:  On file with the Council.]  [93:  Id.]  [94:  Id.] 

Three additional issuances of civil penalties by BIC occurred in 2018.  In the first, a BIC investigator observed a dump truck spilling dirt from its rear door and operating on tires that were in disrepair.[footnoteRef:95]  BIC issued a violation to the commercial carting company pursuant to 17 RCNY § 5-04 and sought a total penalty of $10,000.[footnoteRef:96]  BIC settled this matter and the commercial carter paid $500.[footnoteRef:97]  In the second, a BIC investigator observed a commercial carting truck drive through a steady red light.[footnoteRef:98]  Shortly thereafter, an employee proceeded to commingle trash in the back of the truck.[footnoteRef:99]  BIC issued a pair of violations to the commercial carter—one for the violation of the traffic law and another for the commingling of trash—under 17 RCNY § 5-08(p) and 17 RCNY § 5-12(c)(1)(i), respectively.[footnoteRef:100]  BIC sought a total penalty of $20,000; however, the disposition of this matter is unclear.[footnoteRef:101]  The third related to a cyclist that was struck and killed by a commercial carting truck.[footnoteRef:102]  BIC determined that the driver was operating without the required commercial license and issued a pair of violations to the commercial carter under 17 RCNY § 5-04 and 17 RCNY § 5-08(p).[footnoteRef:103]  While BIC sought a total penalty of $20,000,[footnoteRef:104] BIC settled this matter for $5,000.[footnoteRef:105] [95:  Id.]  [96:  Id.]  [97:  Id.]  [98:  Id.]  [99:  Id.]  [100:  Id.]  [101:  Id.]  [102:  Id.]  [103:  Id.]  [104:  Id.]  [105:  Id.] 

While the Safety Initiative focusing on driver behavior was clearly necessary and effective, it focused on the effect and not the cause of safety violations.  To get to the root of pervasive safety problems Industry-wide, commercial carters must be incentivized to make safety a priority.  At the press conference announcing the Safety Initiative, Commissioner Brownell recognized the problem:
The shortsighted view is that only the drivers bear the responsibility for this bad behavior.  After all, they are the ones actually behind the wheel.  The reality is that bad driving, especially when it’s a pattern, is a clear indication of a deeper problem within the trade waste companies they work for.  Too many companies in this industry have a business model that places profits and expediency over safety and responsible operation.  The managers of these companies load up collection routes to save time and money.  The result is that driver shifts are dangerously long, often violating what is allowed under federal DOT rules.  The drivers then are far too fatigued to operate safely. . . . compounded by pressure from their bosses to complete their routes as quick as they can.  For an industry that is inherently dangerous already, this reckless way of operating becomes a sure recipe for disaster and the statistics bear that out.[footnoteRef:106]    [106:  NYC Mayor’s Office, City Announces Crackdown on Dangerous Operations by Private Trash Trucks, YOUTUBE (Oct. 29, 2018), https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Weo1ScYKkQQ&feature=youtu.be.] 


[bookmark: _Toc12480820][bookmark: _Toc8658395][bookmark: _Toc8721991]RECOMMENDATION TWO: BIC MUST ISSUE CIVIL PENALTIES TO COMMERCIAL CARTERS 

	Civil penalties should be levied against commercial carters for the unsafe driving practices of their employees.  One of the most powerful tools in BIC’s arsenal is the issuance of civil penalties when safety transgressions are committed by any person operating a vehicle on behalf of a BIC licensee.  However, BIC has failed to consistently and aggressively use this mechanism.  To make serious strides toward Industry-wide safety improvements, commercial carters must be financially incentivized to prioritize safe driving practices in the Industry. Holding employees solely accountable for unsafe practices on city roads has not, and will not, move the needle toward improving safety.  The tone must come from the top.  Consequently, BIC must now issue civil penalties to commercial carters pursuant to the scheme set forth in Int. No. 1575 in a manner that unequivocally incentivizes commercial carters to prioritize safe driving practices.


[bookmark: _Toc12480821]BIC’s Limited Regulation of Transfer Stations

[bookmark: _Toc8658380][bookmark: _Toc8721976][bookmark: _Toc12480822]A. The Transfer Station Ecosystem

Once a truck is filled with garbage, it must travel to a transfer station where the waste is deposited, sorted and temporarily stored prior to its transport to a permanent disposal site such as landfill.[footnoteRef:107]  The three main types of transfer stations in New York City are categorized by the types of materials they receive and sort:  Putrescible solid waste,[footnoteRef:108] non-putrescible solid waste,[footnoteRef:109] and fill material.[footnoteRef:110]  According to DSNY, there are sixteen putrescible, twenty-two non-putrescible, and twenty-two fill material transfer stations currently operating in the City.[footnoteRef:111] [107:  Waste Transfer Stations: A Manual for Decision-Making, U.S. ENVTL. PROT. AGENCY 2-3 (June 2002), available at https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-03/documents/r02002.pdf.]  [108:  A putrescible solid waste transfer station receives solid waste containing organic matter having the tendency to decompose and form odors.  See NYC BUSINESS, Solid Waste Transfer Station – Putrescible, https://www1.nyc.gov/nycbusiness/description/solid-waste-transfer-station.]  [109:  A non-putrescible solid waste transfer station, otherwise known as Construction & Demolition transfer station, is a facility that receives non-putrescible solid waste that does not contain organic matter having the tendency to decompose and create odors.  See NYC BUSINESS, Solid Waste Transfer Station – Nonputrescible, https://www1.nyc.gov/nycbusiness/description/solid-waste-transfer-station-nonputrescible.]  [110:  A fill material transfer station receives material such as clean earth, dirt, concrete, rock, gravel, stone, and sand and are that is typically associated with projects that involve landfilling, grading and land improvement projects.  See NYC BUSINESS, Solid Waste Transfer Station – Fill Material, https://www1.nyc.gov/nycbusiness/description/solid-waste-transfer-stationfill-material.]  [111:  On file with the Council.] 

Transfer stations serve a central function in the management of trade waste in New York City.  A single garbage truck may return to a transfer station or travel to multiple transfer stations during a single night of collection. 
[bookmark: _Toc12480823][bookmark: _Toc8658381][bookmark: _Toc8721977]B. Transfer Stations and the Concerning Conduct of their Owners

Transfer stations also have historical connections to organized crime.  As observed by then Democratic New York State Assemblyman Maurice D. Hinchey in 1990, “a lot of the transfer stations in the State of New York are run by people connected to organized crime.”[footnoteRef:112] For example, Philip Barretti Sr. pled guilty to a 1995 indictment for his involvement in the mob-dominated garbage cartel and for illegally dumping petroleum-tainted soil at Nekboh Recycling Inc., a Brooklyn-based transfer station that he owned.[footnoteRef:113] [112:  Timothy Egan, Mob Looks at Recycling and Sees Green, N.Y. TIMES, Nov. 28, 1990, https://www.nytimes.com/1990/11/28/nyregion/mob-looks-at-recycling-and-sees-green.html.]  [113:  Devin Leonard, City Money to the Mob? Manhattan D.A. Targets Giuliani’s Garbage Guy, OBSERVER, Feb. 22, 1999, https://observer.com/1999/02/city-money-to-the-mob-manhattan-da-targets-giulianis-garbage-guy/.] 

More recently, a 2013 federal prosecution by the United States Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of New York (the “Southern District”) involved the indictment of dozens of individuals and was described by investigators “as a fresh twist on the mob’s age-old love affair with the private trash companies that haul waste and run transfer stations where tonnage equals money and the totals can be padded with ease.”[footnoteRef:114]  Pursuant to this indictment, Carmine Franco, once described as the Genovese crime family’s top earner, pled guilty to fraudulently overbilling customers at his transfer station.[footnoteRef:115] Reporting by ProPublica last year highlighted overlap between BIC-licensed commercial carters and the ownership and operation of transfer stations, noting multiple connections between Metropolitan Transfer Station and debarred individuals.[footnoteRef:116]   [114:  Josh Margolin, Feds Snare 30 In Mob Garage Sting, N.Y. POST, Jan. 17, 2013, https://nypost.com/2013/01/17/feds-snare-30-in-mob-garbage-sting/; see also 32 Individuals Charged In Manhattan Federal Court In Connection With Alleged Organized Crime Scheme To Control The Commercial Waste Disposal Industry, U.S. DEP’T OF JUSTICE, https://www.justice.gov/usao-sdny/pr/32-individuals-charged-manhattan-federal-court-connection-alleged-organized-crime.]  [115:  Steve Lieberman, Mob-Linked Rockland Garbage Carter Sentenced to Prison, LOHUD, May 16, 2014, https://www.lohud.com/story/news/crime/2014/05/16/mob-linked-rockland-garbage-carter-sentenced-prison/9177429/.]  [116:  Kiera Feldman, Embattled Garbage Hauler Co-Owns Dump with Person Expelled From Trash Industry, Records Show, PROPUBLICA, Aug. 28, 2018, https://www.propublica.org/article/sanitation-salvage-embattled-garbage-hauler-co-owns-dump-with-person-expelled-from-trash-industry.] 

Another example of a concerning connection between the Industry and transfer stations relates to an individual named William Formica (“Formica”), an owner and executive of a BIC-licensed entity named Flag Container Services, Inc. (“Flag Container”).  Formica was indicted for his involvement in concealing an alleged murder committed by his tenant.[footnoteRef:117]  In addition to being a BIC-licensed commercial carter, Flag Container also operates a waste transfer station on Staten Island.[footnoteRef:118]  Formica was charged with using “business equipment” to help gather items from his tenant’s apartment and later concealing the evidence at the Flag Container waste transfer station.[footnoteRef:119] [117:  Nolan Hicks, Craig McCarthy, & Max Jaeger, SI Garbage Kingpin Who Allegedly Helped Cover Up Murder Still Has City License, N.Y. POST, May 29, 2019, https://nypost.com/2019/05/29/si-garbage-kingpin-who-allegedly-helped-cover-up-murder-still-has-city-license/.]  [118:  Based on records publicly available from New York State Department of State and Lexis.]  [119:  Id.] 

On June 12, 2019, Flag Container’s renewal application to operate as a commercial carter, which was pending since August 2017 with BIC,[footnoteRef:120] was denied.[footnoteRef:121]  It is still unclear what if any impact this denial has or will have with respect to Flag Container’s operation of its waste transfer station.  Flag Container’s waste transfer station currently has a contract with DSNY for the acceptance of non-putrescible solid waste.[footnoteRef:122] [120:  Nolan Hicks, City Hall Moves to Oust Trash Hauler Indicted in Murder Cover-Up, N.Y. POST, May 31, 2019, https://nypost.com/2019/05/31/city-hall-moves-to-oust-trash-hauler-indicted-in-murder-cover-up/; Thomas Tracy & Kerry Burke, City Hall Taking Out Trash Hauler Accused of Cleaning Up Staten Island Murder, N.Y. DAILY NEWS, MAY 31, 2019, https://www.nydailynews.com/new-york/nyc-crime/ny-trash-hauler-ousted-20190601-twycpxgwqzecjb47bh5r5lbkza-story.html.]  [121:  Paul Liotta, City Shutters Formica Companies; Owner Linked to Murder Cover-Up, SILIVE, June 13, 2019, https://www.silive.com/news/2019/06/city-shutters-formica-companies-owner-linked-to-murder-cover-up.html.]  [122:  See New York City Comptroller, CHECKBOOK NYC, https://www.checkbooknyc.com/contracts_landing/status/A/yeartype/B/year/120/vendor/23609?expandBottomContURL=/panel_html/contract_transactions/agid/3159924/status/A/doctype/CT1.  This contract commenced on November 1, 2015 and is set to expire on October 31, 2019.  Id.  While this contract amount was set at just over $37 million, it appears that Flag Container has performed just over $269,000 worth of services to date.  Id.] 

OIU’s investigation identified another waste transfer station that raises concerns.  An individual currently listed as the chief executive officer of a Brooklyn transfer station incorporated in 1979 has held that position since 1980.[footnoteRef:123]  However, when that same chief executive officer and his two brothers (the “Brooklyn-based Applicant”) applied for a trade waste license in 2002, BIC denied the application based on a determination that the Brooklyn-based Applicant lacked good character on three distinct bases:[footnoteRef:124]  First, the commission of two separate racketeering acts by participating in a mob-controlled cartel;[footnoteRef:125] second, the repeated provision of false information to BIC;[footnoteRef:126] third, the obstruction of BIC’s investigation into alleged deceptive trade practices.[footnoteRef:127] BIC confirmed that the current principal of this Brooklyn transfer station was the same person who was denied a trade waste license by BIC in 2002. [123:  Based on records publicly available from New York State Department of State and Lexis. ]  [124:  Based on documents provided by BIC that are on file with the Council.]  [125:  Id.]  [126:  Id.]  [127:  Id.] 

[bookmark: _Toc11407453][bookmark: _Toc11407489][bookmark: _Toc11407535][bookmark: _Toc8658382][bookmark: _Toc8721978][bookmark: _Toc12480824]C. Routine BIC Regulatory Review Does Not Currently Include Transfer Stations

	The permitting and rules of operation for putrescible, non-putrescible and fill material transfer stations as well as fill material operations (“FMO”) operating in the City (collectively “DSNY Permittees”) are primarily regulated by DSNY.[footnoteRef:128]  DSNY’s authority to issue, renew, suspend, revoke and/or deny a transfer station permit is enumerated in the Administrative Code.[footnoteRef:129]   [128:  N.Y.C. Admin. Code § 16-130 enumerates the specific provisions required to obtain a transfer station permit, and § 16-131 outlines the rules of operation, the annual registration fees associated with the different types of transfer stations, and the frequency with which they must apply for renewal.  Administrative Code § 16-131.1(c) provides that dumps, non-putrescible solid waste transfer stations or putrescible solid waste transfer stations are permitted by DSNY annually, while Admin. Code § 16-131.1(d) provides that transfer stations that house fill material are permitted by DSNY biannually. FMOs are businesses that engage in projects that include landfilling, grading, land improvements or changing existing property grades.  NYC BUSINESS, Fill Material Operation, https://www1.nyc.gov/nycbusiness/description/fill-material-operation.]  [129:  N.Y. C. ADMIN. CODE § § 16-131.1, 16-131.1(b)(1)-(4). ] 

In contrast to DSNY, BIC’s regulatory role with respect to DSNY Permittees is limited.[footnoteRef:130]  Unlike the biennial license renewal review that BIC conducts with respect to commercial carters, BIC only conducts such a review upon DSNY referral.[footnoteRef:131]  According to BIC and DSNY, DSNY only refers a transfer station for review when a DSNY Permittee submits an initial application to DSNY, or when a change in ownership and/or principal occurs.  Upon such a referral, BIC conducts a review and provides a recommendation to DSNY, and DSNY ultimately makes the final determination as to whether a transfer station will operate.  Therefore, BIC would not have reviewed any DSNY Permittees that began operating prior to BIC’s creation in 1996 unless the DSNY Permittee had a change in principle and/or ownership and BIC was specifically directed to conduct a review by DSNY.   [130:  See N.Y. C. ADMIN. CODE § 16-509(a)(i)-(x).]  [131:  See N.Y. C. ADMIN. CODE § 16-131.1(a).] 

These two points of contact with BIC are insufficient to ensure that transfer station industry participants operate with honesty and integrity.  According to materials produced by BIC and DSNY,[footnoteRef:132] BIC has only reviewed one of the sixteen total DSNY–permitted putrescible solid waste transfer stations for good character, honesty, and integrity since at least 2012.  Similarly, BIC has only reviewed five out of twenty-two of the DSNY-permitted non-putrescible solid waste transfer stations and six out of twenty-two fill material transfer stations since at least 2012.  Consequently, only twenty percent of DSNY Permittees have been reviewed for potential links to organized crime since at least 2012.  The two examples cited above demonstrate this regulatory gap.  In both instances, BIC may not have conducted a good character review in decades—because both transfer stations began operating prior to BIC’s creation—and certainly did not conduct any such review since at least 2012. [132:  On file with the Council.] 

[bookmark: _Toc8658383][bookmark: _Toc8721979][bookmark: _Toc12480825]RECOMMENDATION THREE: BIC’S REGULATORY AUTHORITY OVER TRANSFER STATIONS SHOULD MIRROR ITS AUTHORITY OVER COMMERCIAL CARTERS AS SET FORTH IN INT. NO. 1611 TO ENSURE THEY OPERATE WITH GOOD CHARACTER, HONESTY AND INTEGRITY

[bookmark: _Toc8658396][bookmark: _Toc8721992]	BIC should guard against the infiltration of organized crime into the transfer station marketplace and ensure that transfer stations operate with honesty and integrity.  Therefore, BIC should conduct a good character, honesty, and integrity review of DSNY Permittees not less than every two years—just like it is mandated to do for commercial carters—and provide a recommendation to DSNY who should continue to have the authority to issue, renew, suspend, revoke and/or deny a transfer station permit application.


[bookmark: _Toc12480826]Conclusion

For the reasons detailed above, OIU’s recommendations are as follows: 
1)	Careful review of property records is necessary to ensure that commercial carters are not operating on land owned by debarred individuals, or otherwise doing business with debarred individuals;

2)	BIC must issue civil penalties to commercial carters pursuant to the scheme set forth in Int. No. 1575 in such a manner that unequivocally incentivizes the Industry to prioritize safe driving practices; and 

3)	BIC’s regulatory authority over transfer stations should mirror its authority over commercial carters as set forth in Intro 1611-2019 to ensure they operate with good character, honesty and integrity.



[bookmark: _Toc12480827]Legislation

Int. No. 1575 would require BIC to impose civil penalties on businesses that BIC licenses or registers when their drivers commit traffic offenses. This local law would take effect immediately, except that the business integrity commission would promulgate the rules required by this local law no later than 180 days after such effective date.
Int. No. 1611 would expand the role of BIC in reviewing waste transfer stations, dumps and fill material operations that are required to get a permit from DSNY. These businesses would be required to provide certain information and comply with certain requirements that would enable BIC to assess their good character, honesty and integrity. DSNY would use BIC’s assessment in determining whether to grant, renew or revoke permits. In addition, this bill would require labor unions that represent or seek to represent employees of waste transfer stations to register with BIC. 
This local law would take effect 120 days after it becomes law, except that DSNY and BIC would take such measures as are necessary for the implementation of this local law, including the promulgation of rules, before such date, and except that section two of this local law would not apply to any business that was issued a permit by DSNY on or prior to such date until the next renewal of such permit.	

Int. No. 1575

	By Council Members Reynoso, Torres and Rosenthal
 
A Local Law to amend the administrative code of the city of New York, in relation to the imposition of civil penalties on businesses required to be licensed or registered by the business integrity commission for unsafe driving by persons operating vehicles on behalf of such businesses
 
Be it enacted by the Council as follows:
Section 1. Subdivisions b and c of section 16-515 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as added by local law number 42 for the year 1996, are amended to read as follows:
b. [(i)] Any person who violates subdivision a of section 16-505 or section 16-524 of this chapter shall, upon conviction thereof, be punished for each violation by a criminal fine of not more than ten thousand dollars for each day of such violation or by imprisonment not exceeding six months, or both; and any such person shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more than five thousand dollars for each day of such violation to be recovered in a civil action or returnable to the department of consumer affairs or other administrative tribunal of competent jurisdiction; [and]
c. Any person who violates subdivision b of section 16-505 of this chapter or any rule pertaining thereto shall, upon conviction thereof, be punished by a civil penalty not to exceed one thousand dollars for each such violation to be recovered in a civil action or returnable to the department of consumer affairs or other administrative tribunal of competent jurisdiction[.]; and
§ 2. Subdivisions d and e of section 16-515 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as added by local law number 42 for the year 1996, are redesignated subdivisions e and f, respectively.
§ 3. Section 16-515 of the administrative code of the city of New York is amended by adding a new subdivision d to read as follows:
d. The commission shall impose the civil penalties as set forth in the following table on any business required by this chapter to be licensed or registered when any person operating a vehicle on behalf of such business violates a provision set forth in the table or established by rule by the commission. If, in any six-month period, any one person operating a vehicle on behalf of any such business has been convicted of any four such violations, in any combination, the commission shall impose a civil penalty of $10,000 against such business.
	TABLE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

	Provision
	Description 
	Minimum Penalty

	Vehicle and traffic law section 301(b)(2)
	Uninspected Heavy Vehicle
	$2,500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 306(b)
	Uninspected Motor Vehicle
	$2,500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 319
	Uninsured Motorist 
	$10,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 319(3)
	Failure to Produce an Insurance Identification Card
	$1,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 375(1)
	Inadequate Brakes 
	$5,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 375(3)
	Failure to Dim Headlights
	$50.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 375(29a)
	Improper Towing/More Than One Vehicle
	$50.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 375(29c)
	Connection Longer Than 16 Feet
	$50.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 375(29d)
	No Licensed Driver in Towed Vehicle
	$50.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 375(35c)
	Unsafe Tire
	$1,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 401(1)(a)
	Unregistered Motor Vehicle
	$2,500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 401(4)
	Failure to Produce a Current Vehicle Registration
	$1,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 408(j)(1)
	Vehicle Improperly Registered
	$2,500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 509
	Drivers' License Violations
	$5,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 511
	Operation while License is Suspended or Revoked
	$5,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 600
	Leaving the Scene of an Accident
	$5,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1102
	Failure to Comply with a Lawful Order
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1110(a)
	Failure to Obey Traffic Control Device
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1110(a)(1)
	Passed Green Arrow
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1111(d)(1)
	Passed Red Light
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1111(a)(1)
	Passed Red Arrow
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1120(a)
	Failure to Keep Right
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1122
	Improper Lane Change
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1122-a
	Overtaking a Bicycle
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1123(b)
	Left Pavement to Pass on Right
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1124
	Unsafe Passing
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1125(a)1
	Drove to Left on Hillcrest or Curve
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1127(a)
	Drove Wrong Way on a One Way Street
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1128(a)
	Unsafe Lane Change
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1129(a)
	Following Too Closely (Tailgating)
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1140
	Failure to Yield Right of Way at Intersection
	$1,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1141
	Failure to Yield Right of Way--Oncoming Traffic
	$1,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1143
	Failure to Yield Right of Way--Pedestrians
	$1,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1163
	Failure to Signal Lane Change
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1172
	Failure to Stop for a School Bus
	$5,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1174
	Failure to Stop at Stop Sign or Flashing Red Light
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1180(a)
	Unreasonable/Imprudent Speed
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1180(b)
	Speeding
	 

	 
	1 - 10 mph over speed limit
	$500.00 

	 
	11 - 20 mph over speed limit
	 $1,000.00 

	 
	21 - 30 mph over speed limit
	$2,500.00 

	 
	31 - 40 mph over speed limit (possible suspension)
	$5,000.00 

	 
	More than 40 mph over speed limit (possible suspension)
	$10,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1192.1
	Driving While Ability Impaired
	$10,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1192.2
	Driving While Intoxicated
	$10,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1192.3
	Driving While Intoxicated
	$10,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1192.4
	Driving While Ability Impaired by Drugs
	$10,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1192.4a
	Driving While Ability Impaired by Drugs & Alcohol
	$10,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1212
	Reckless Driving (Misdemeanor Offense)
	$10,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1225(c)
	Improper Cell Phone Use
	$2,500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1226
	No Hands on Wheel or Steering Device
	$250.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1229(c)(3)
	No Seat Belt/Driver
	$500.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1229(c)(2)
	Safety Restraint Violation Person Under 16
	$1,000.00 

	Vehicle and traffic law section 1233
	Clinging to Vehicles
	$2,500.00 

	 
	Other Moving Violations
	$500.00 

	 
	Other Equipment Violations
	$500.00 

	Administrative code section 19-190(a)
	Right of Way
	$750.00

	Administrative code section 19-190(b)
	Right of Way (with injury)
	$2,500.00


 
§ 4. This local law takes effect immediately, except that the business integrity commission shall promulgate the rules required by this local law no later than 180 days after such effective date.
 
NAB
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Int. No. 1611

By Council Members Torres, Reynoso and Brannan
A Local Law to amend the administrative code of the city of New York, in relation to the review by the business integrity commission of certain permittees and applicants for permits and requiring labor unions representing employees of waste transfer stations to register with the business integrity commission
 
Be it enacted by the Council as follows:
Section 1. The first paragraph of section 16-131.1 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as added by local law number 42 for the year 1996, is amended to read as follows:
§ 16-131.1. Issuance, renewal, suspension and revocation of permits. The commissioner shall be responsible for the issuance, renewal, suspension and revocation of permits required by section 16-130 of this chapter. An application for such a permit and certain renewals of such a permit as specified pursuant to subdivisions c and c-1 of this section shall also be presented by the department to the New York city trade waste commission for review by such commission. The commissioner shall consider the recommendations of such commission in making a determination pursuant to this section.
§ 2. Subdivision c of section 16-131.1 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as added by local law number 42 for the year 1996, is amended to read as follows:
c. [Where the commissioner or] In addition to providing the information required by the rules promulgated pursuant to paragraph 2 of subdivision a of section 16-131, each permittee or applicant for a permit shall: 
1. comply with the fingerprinting requirements set forth in paragraph (i) of subdivision b of section 16-508;
2. provide to the trade waste commission and the commissioner all information required pursuant to paragraph (ii) of subdivision b and subdivision c of section 16-508, paragraphs (1), (2), (6), (7) and (8) of subdivision (a) of section 2-05, subdivision (c) of section 2-05 and section 5-07 of title 17 of the rules of the city of New York and any other rules  of the New York city trade waste commission that such commission may designate or establish to apply to permittees or applicants for a permit;
3. comply with the requirements regarding its employees set forth in section 16-510; and
4. pay all applicable fees for such investigations set forth in the rules of the New York city trade waste commission.
c-1. At the time of the initial application for a permit required by section 16-130 and the renewal of such permit every second year thereafter, the New York city trade waste commission shall investigate and make an assessment of the good character, honesty and integrity of each applicant or permittee and shall deliver its recommendation to the commissioner. If, at any other time,  the New York city trade waste commission has reasonable cause to believe that a permittee [or an applicant for a permit required by section 16-130 of this code] may lack good character, honesty and integrity, [such applicant or permittee shall, in addition to providing the information required by the rules promulgated pursuant to paragraph two of subdivision a of section 16-131 of this code, also comply with the fingerprinting and disclosure requirements set forth in subdivision b of section 16-508 of this code and pay the fee for the investigation thereof set forth in the rules of the New York city trade waste commission] the New York city trade waste commission shall deliver to the commissioner its assessment and the basis for such assessment. The commissioner may, after consideration of [the results of such investigation] the assessment, recommendation or information provided by the New York city trade waste commission, refuse for the reasons set forth in section 16-509 of this code to issue a permit required by section 16-130 of this chapter and, after notice and opportunity to be heard, may revoke or suspend any such permit upon a finding that the applicant or the permittee lacks good character, honesty and integrity.
§ 3. Section 16-503 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as amended by local law number 55 for the year 2019, is amended to read as follows:
§ 16-503 Functions. The commission shall be responsible for the licensing, registration and regulation of businesses that remove, collect or dispose of trade waste, trade waste brokers, and labor unions or labor organizations that represent or seek to represent employees directly involved in the collection, removal, receipt, transfer, transportation or disposal of trade waste. 
§ 4. Subdivision j of section 16-504 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as added by local law number 55 for the year 2019, is amended to read as follows:
j. To issue and establish standards for the registration of labor unions or labor organizations representing or seeking to represent employees directly involved in the collection, removal, receipt, transfer, transportation or disposal of trade waste and for suspending or disqualifying officers of such unions or organizations.
§ 5. Subdivision c of section 16-505 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as added by local law number 55 for the year 2019, is amended to read as follows:
c. A labor union or labor organization representing or seeking to represent employees directly involved in the collection, removal, receipt, transfer, transportation or disposal of trade waste shall, within the time period prescribed by the commission, register with the commission and shall disclose information to the commission as the commission may by rule require, including but not limited to the names of all officers and agents of such union or organization; provided, however, that no labor union or labor organization shall be required to furnish information pursuant to this section which is already included in a report filed by such labor union or labor organization with the secretary of labor pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 431, et seq., or § 1001, et seq., if a copy of such report, or of the portion thereof containing such information, is furnished to the commission; and provided further that this section shall not apply (i) to a labor union or labor organization representing or seeking to represent clerical or other office workers, or (ii) to affiliated national or international labor unions of local labor unions that are required to register pursuant to this provision.
§ 6. This local law takes effect 120 days after it becomes law, except that the department of sanitation and the business integrity commission shall take such measures as are necessary for the implementation of this local law, including the promulgation of rules, before such date, and except that section two of this local law shall not apply to any business that was issued a permit by the department of sanitation on or prior to such date until the next renewal of such permit.
 
 
 
 
 
 
NAB
LS #10149
4/29/19

Page 1 of 46

image1.png




image2.png
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